Installation and Operating Instructions



for the specialist

TectoCell Standard Plus 80 cold rooms and deep-freeze rooms TectoCell Standard Plus 100 cold rooms and deep-freeze rooms TectoCell Standard Plus 120 deep-freeze room TectoCell Standard Plus 150 deep-freeze room



Contents

1	User Guide	.3
	1.1 Target group	
	1.2 Structure of the operating instructions	3
	1.3 Related documents	
	1.4 Safekeeping	
	1.5 Symbols on the product	4
2	Safety and dangers	.4
	2.1 Intended use	5
	2.2 Foreseeable Misuse	5
3	Transport	.5
	3.1 Delivery	
4	Assembly	6
-	4.1 Installation conditions	
	4.2 Before installation	
	4.3 Level floor	
	4.4 Assembling a mounting frame (without floor)	
	(without floor)	1
	4.5 Assembling room elements	
	4.6 Assembling floor elements	8
	4.7 Seal operating apertures in the cam locks in the floor elements	9
	4.8 Assembling wall elements	
	4.9 Assembling partition wall of combination rooms withou tongue and groove system	
	4.10 Mounting the door1 4.11 Mounting ceiling elements	
	5 5	0
		11
	4.13 Mount doorsill (for rooms with floor elements)	
	4.14 Remove transport securing plates	
	4.15 Adjusting the door1	
	4.16 Light test 1 4.17 Attaching the cover caps 1	
	4.17 Attaching the cover caps	
	4.19 Mechanical work on the door or porthole	
	4.20 Rearranging the luminaries	
-		
5	Sealing of openings and cut edges1	3
6	Electrical connections1	4
7	Commissioning1	5
	7.1 Commissioning the cold room1	
8	Cleaning1	5
9	Decommissioning1	Э
10	Technical data1	
	10.1 Permissible loading on floor elements1	6
11	Maintenance1	6
12	Disposal1	6
	Standards and laws1	
	Warranty1	
	Wiring diagram for revolving door SKI1	
	Wiring diagram for revolving door SKI1	
17	Wiring diagram for porthole1	9

User Guide

1 User Guide

All important information for operation and control is summarized in these operating instructions.

Read the operating instructions completely and only use the product after you have first understood the operating instructions.

If you have any questions, please contact your Viessmann specialist partner. You will find the current address on the back page.

1.1 Target group

These instructions are aimed exclusively at authorized specialists.

- Electrical work to be performed exclusively by qualified electricians.
- Initial commissioning is to be be performed exclusively by the manufacturer or by a specialist designated and authorized by the manufacturer.

1.2 Structure of the operating instructions

1.2.1 Warnings

Structure of the warnings

Warnings are structured as follows:

▲ SIGNAL Source of danger		Source of danger!
	WORD!	Consequences of non-compliance.
		Measure to avoid the danger.

Gradation of the warnings

Warnings differ according to the type of danger as follows:

	DANGER!	Warns against an imminent threat of danger, which will lead to death or serious injuries if it is not avoided.
	WARNING!	Warns against a possibly dangerous situation, which will lead to death or serious injuries if it is not avoided.
A	CAUTION!	Warns against a possibly dangerous situation, which will lead to moderate or minor injuries if it is not avoided.
NOTE		Warns against a possibly dangerous situation, which will lead to damage to property or the environment if it is not avoided.

Tips, notes, and recommendations

Gives the user tips, notes, or recommendations on using the product efficiently.

1.2.2 Additional symbols

Handling instructions

Handling instructions ask you to carry out an operation or a work step. Handling instructions should always be carried out individually and in the specified sequence.

Structure of the handling instructions:

➔ Instructions for an operation.

Results if required.

Lists

Structure of the unnumbered lists:

- List level 1
 - List level 2

Structure of the numbered lists:

- 1. List level 1
 - 1.1 List level 2

1.3 Related documents

Please also observe the additional documents provided (such as the delivery documents) and relevant standards and laws follow the safe and correct use of the device.

1.4 Safekeeping

Keep the Operating Manual, including the related documents, handy in the vicinity of the device.

1.5 Symbols on the product



Transport

NOTE	Corrosion from installing unal- loyed steel!		
	 Immediately remove corrosion from unalloyed steel. 		
	 Clean stainless steel surfaces thoroughly after contact with unal- loyed stainless steel. 		
NOTE	Damage to the door!		
	If no door stop has been installed, please make sure to carefully open the door in order to prevent dam- ages to the door or the wall.		
NOTE	Damage from defective cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms!		
	 Ensure that only trained qualified personnel operate the Tectocoldroomsanddeep-freezingrooms. 		
	 Use TectoCell cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms exclusively in original condition without unauthor- 		

Follow Installation and Operating Instructions.

Have mounting, maintenance, cleaning, and repair work performed exclusively by trained specialists.

perfect condition.

ized modifications and in technically

2.1 Intended use

Use the TectoCell cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms exclusively for cooling suitable refrigerated products.

Use TectoCell cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms exclusively for:

- commercial purposes
- for the specified temperature range
- for stationary use

2.2 Foreseeable Misuse

Do not use TectoCell cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms for mobile uses.Do not install TectoCell cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms in areas exposed to the effects of weathering. Any use which does not comply with the conditions of use discussed during the sales process is deemed to be misuse.

3 Transport

Only carry room elements from the bottom to prevent panels from separating.

3.1 Delivery

Delivery condition:

- Delivery in individual packaging units
- Individual elements must be marked with stickers or numbers.
- The door panel (single-leaf) is pre-mounted in the door frame.
- The following are built into the door frame:
 - Control panel
 - LED Moisture-proof lamp with integrated junction box
 - Junction box only for option without lamp
- Mounting accessories are packaged separately.

The control panel contains:

- Light switch
- Thermometer
- Pressure equalisation valve
- Door frame heating and pressure compensation valve (optional for wall thickness 80)

3.1.1 Unpacking

Before and during the unpacking:

- comply with the safety and environmental regulations at the installation site.
- Check TectoCell cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms for transport damages with a visual inspection.
- In order to process warranty claims, report faults (with photos, for instance) to the manufacturer and indicate the manufacturer number and type designation.
- Provisions in the event of damage" must be observed!
- Observe the "General conditions for transport damage and hidden transport damage".
- Check packaging material for loose parts after unpacking.
- Dispose of packaging material in an environmentally compatible way according to local regulations.

4 Assembly

A [DANGER!	Risk of death due to electric shock!
		Do not conduct any mechanical work
		(such as drilling or sawing) on the inside or outside of the door or
		porthole (see Chap. "4.19 Mechani- cal work on the door or porthole" on
		page13).
NOTE		Damage due to improper han- dling!
		Ensure that the seal profiles of the elements are not damaged.
		Č.
NOTE		Damage due to improper trans- port!
		► Only carry room elements from the bottom to prevent panels from separating.
NOTE		Damage due to improper mount- ing!
		Make sure that room elements
		are correctly mounted after assem- bly.
NOTE		Damage due to improper mount- ing!
		Make sure that all preparatory
		work for mounting units to the ele-

Observe unit instructions.

4.1 Installation conditions

NOTE	Damage due to condensation water!
	 Make sure that the installation room is sufficiently ventilated.
	 Make sure that all necessary distances are complied with.

Conditions for installation space

- Do not install TectoCell cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms near heat sources.
- ➔ Avoid direct sunlight.
- Make sure that the installation space is sufficiently ventilated in order to discharge any heat that builds up.
- Distance from TectoCell cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms to building wall and ceiling:
 - Room temperature in positive range: at least 50 mm
 - Room temperature in negative range: at least 100 mm
 - The distance from the room to the wall must be ensured with suitable spacers, since the room's position may slip depending on the load it is under!
- Observe specifications on the necessary clearance above the TectoCell cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms in the operating instructions of the unit in question.
- Observe a suitable installation height for floor prop designs and add to it if necessary.

Conditions for outdoor installation

- Make sure that the TectoCell cold rooms and deepfreezing rooms is not exposed to the effects of weathering (snow loads, rainwater, wind pressure, etc.).
- Make sure that local and on-site construction measures to protect from the effects of weathering have been completed before installing the Tecto cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms.
- Observe national and local rules on work safety and accident prevention measures.
- Observe local regulations on operation and maintenance.

4.2 Before installation

- Make sure that the floor is level.
- Level uneven floor (siehe Kap. "4.3 Boden ausgleichen" auf Seite 7).
- Contact Viessmann if it is not possible to comply with national and local regulations.
- Carefully remove the elements and accessories.
- Pre-sort the elements and accessories.
- Draw the footprint of the room on the installation floor using a suitable implement.

4.3 Level floor



4.3.1 Room with floor ventilation

- Rooms with floor ventilation: Room temperature below -5 °C.
- If the floor on site is not even or not horizontal, level the height of the bottom ventilation panel:
 - with adjustment plates
- Lay bottom ventilation panel loosely at distances of 200–300 mm (clear space).
- Begin levelling at the highest point.
- Ake sure that the element joints (1) are centred during assembly and that the outsides of the elements (2) are lying with their full surfaces on the bottom ventilation panels.

4.3.2 Room without floor ventilation

If the floor on-site is uneven or not horizontal, adjust its height with adjustment plates.

4.4 Assembling a mounting frame (without floor)



(1) Thanks to their special design, the plastic U-profiles seal all the way down to the floor after assembly.



- Screw U-profiles to floor of the installation space at the intended position.
- Note the position of the door.
- Place wall elements into U-profiles.
- Crimer Rivet or screw wall elements with U-profiles.
- Solution Make sure that the wall elements are perpendicular.

Door element without floor

() Door element without floor is delivered with securing for transportation and without door frame heating.

Remove the door element's securing for transport before installation.

4.5 Assembling room elements



Connect room elements as follows:

- Activate eccentric cam locks from inside of room. First, only operate the centre locks to enable the alignment of the walls.
- Check whether the room elements' eccentric cam locks can be opened by turning left with Allen key.
- Make sure that the room elements are not more than 12 mm apart from one another.
- Push room elements together and close eccentric cam locks by turning right.

4.6 Assembling floor elements



- () Floor elements with stainless steel top plate are fit with joint tape on the overlapping on the spring side.
- Make sure that there is no protective film on the joint tape.
- Make sure that the joint tape (1) are not damaged during assembly.



- In the case of floor elements (2) with 1 and 2-side connection, fill the connection point (3) with the enclosed sealant during assembly.
- Do not put any load on the floor elements to be assembled during tensioning.
- Make sure that the floor elements to be assembled can move freely.



- Push floor elements (4) together.
- Tighten eccentric cam lock (5) on the exterior.
- If necessary, push the opposing side of the floor element with a pry bar.
- Solution All the Al
- Tighten the eccentric cam lock on the opposing exterior side.
- Tighten interior eccentric cam locks.



- Drill a hole into the plate end of the opposing element (6) through the hole provided (7) in the plate surface of the spring side.
- Rivet the overlapping of the floor elements.

Drill holes

- Use a suitable lubricant for drilling.
- Depending on the floor, make the drill holes according to the specifications below.

1600 N floor:

- Drill with Ø 3.3 mm
- Drill hole at least 10 mm deep.
- Pop rivet with Ø 3.2 mm
- Hand riveter with mouthpiece (suitable for stainless steel) for 3.2 mm pop rivet

3000 N, 4000 N and 5000 N floor:

- Drill with Ø 5.0 mm
- Drill hole at least 24 mm deep.
- Countersunk rivet with Ø 5.0 mm
- Hand riveter with mouthpiece (suitable for stainless steel) for 5.0 countersunk rivet

4.7 Seal operating apertures in the cam locks in the floor elements

() Using a steel hammer will run the risk of contamination with outside rust.



- Fill operating aperture (3) with the supplied heat insulation foam filler (4).
- Fill the operating aperture (3) by spraying it with the enclosed sealant (2).
- Seal operating apertures (3) with plugs (1).

() Use suitable plugs depending on the floor.

1600 N floor:

- Plug Ø 15.0 mm stainless steel
- 3000 N, 4000 N and 5000 N floor:
 - Plug Ø 15.1 mm stainless steel, knurled

4.8 Assembling wall elements



Make sure that the inner floor panel is free of grease and dust in the area of the inner wall panel (2).

- Adhere enclosed sealant (1) to cleaned edge of the inner floor panel.
- C Remove protective film from joint tape.
- Begin wall assembly with corner element.
- Push elements together and tighten eccentric cam locks. First, only operate the centre locks to enable the alignment of the walls.
- Align wall element horizontally and vertically.
- In the case of longer room elements, there may be protrusions at the corners caused by natural tolerance. We recommend starting with the assembly of the room at the corner areas. Connect the elements with the floor and the ceiling according to the order defined in the drawing. Install the final walls from inside to outside with the aid of vacuum suction devices. Make sure that the last wall set is flush with the other room walls at the upper edge.



4.9 Assembling partition wall of combination rooms without tongue and groove system



- Place partition wall at intended location.
- Fasten partition wall to the wall, ceiling and floor elements with the enclosed fastening profiles (2).
- Make sure that the cover plate (1) is interrupted between the elements to prevent condensation from forming.

4.10 Mounting the door

(1) The single-leaf door is delivered pre-mounted in the door frame.



C Align door frame horizontally and vertically.

4.11 Mounting ceiling elements



Place ceiling element (1) onto wall elements (2) and tighten eccentric cam locks (3).

If any of the elements become displaced:

- Open the eccentric cam locks and align the elements.
- Retighten the eccentric cam locks in the following order: wall/wall, wall/ceiling and wall/floor.

4.12 Seal operating apertures in the cam locks in the wall and ceiling elements



- Fill operating apertures 3 with the supplied heat insulation foam fillers (2).
- Seal operating apertures with plastic plugs (1).

4.13 Mount doorsill (for rooms with floor elements)

A	DANGER!	Risk of death due to electric shock!
		Only drill out the intended holes in the stainless steel doorsill.
		Do not drill any additional holes.



Place the stainless steel doorsill (1) in the middle between the door soffit on the floor element and align.

- Use the stainless steel doorsill as a template for fixing holes (Ø 3.3 mm) and drill out.
- Remove drilling chips.
- In order to prevent moisture from getting in, apply sealing strip with the enclosed sealant (2) on the entire surface of the bottom of the doorsill.
- Distribute sealing strip.
- Lay stainless steel doorsill onto floor element and align it.
- ➡ Fasten stainless steel doorsill with enclosed rivets.
- Seal stainless steel doorsill with enclosed sealant:
 - between door soffit and doorsill
 - between floor and doorsill
- Remove any sealant that escapes.

4.14 Remove transport securing plates



() The magnetic sealing frames on the doors are protected from mechanical damage by securing plates.

Before initial operation or door adjustment:

Remove transport securing plates (1).

4.15 Adjusting the door



Adjust hinges when the door is closed in order to compensate for deviations if:

- the magnet sealing profile is not placed evenly all the way around
- the sealing lip of the floor seal is not lying on the sill or on-site floor.

Adjust hinges as follows:

- Remove cover caps (1) from door hinges.
- Open door.
- Insert thin pin, small Allen key or similar into opening (3) in the cap in order to loosen the cap seal.
- Loosen the screws (2).
 - Adjust the door leaf in depth and horizontal position using the screws (2).
 - Adjust the door leaf vertically with the hinge pin.

Adjust door vertically:

- Turn hinge pin with Allen key (8 mm) until the door has the desired height.
- Make sure that the hinge can move easily in all adjustment areas.
- Adjust all of the door's hinges.
- () Maximum adjustment range: +/- 3 mm.

4.16 Light test

Conduct a light test to check whether light gets into the dark room through an open seal point.

4.17 Attaching the cover caps

- Place the cover caps onto the hinge so they are centred.
- Fit the narrow side of the cover caps in the recess in the hinge housing into slide blocks.
- Lock the mounting lugs into place by pushing up or down on the cover caps.

4.18 Fastening the striker



- (1) The striker of the rotary lever lock is adjusted at the factory.
- After assembly or door adjustment, check whether lug of the rotary lever lock clicks into place behind the striker (2).
- If necessary, readjust the striker as follows:
- Ioosen the striker screws (3).
- If necessary, place a spacer (1) between the door frame and striker.
- Fix the striker into the slots with screws (3) and tighten the screws.
- Check whether the door is tight.
- ⇒ Pre-drill fastening for round holes (Ø 3.7 mm).
- Additionally fix the striker into the slots with the enclosed screws (4).

4.19 Mechanical work on the door or porthole

DANGER!	Risk of death due to electric shock from damaged wires!
	 Do not conduct any mechanical work (such as drilling or sawing) on the inside or outside of the door or port- hole in the safety zone (1).



- () Electrical components are foamed in place in the grey-marked safety zone 1. Damage to the electrical components or wires poses the risk of electric shock.
- Observe safety zone (1) before commencing mechanical work on the door or porthole.
- Makes sure that mechanical work will only be conducted outside of the safety zone.

4.20 Rearranging the luminaries



- () Moisture-proof luminaries and junction box are mounted at the factory on the inside of the door frame.
- (1) The junction box with luminaries can be displaced by 90° .
- Remove the upper part of the lamp by loosening the 4 screws.
- Loosen the fastening screws.
- Turn lamp by 90° and fix it in a new position with the fastening screws.
- Re-attach the upper part of the lamp and fasten it with the 4 screws.
- ➡ Attach the cover plugs.

5 Sealing of openings and cut edges

- (1) Any subsequent processing of the coated cell elements (e.g. drilling, sawing, etc.) requires the application of corrosion protection!
- Subsequent treatment of cut edges: All cut edges of subsequently installed openings, cutouts, etc. must be treated with a suitable means of corrosion protection (e.g. zinc dust paint).
- Subsequent treatment of boreholes/openings:
 - Openings for refrigerant piping must be treated with corrosion protection (e.g. zinc dust paint or a comparable product).
 - After installation of the piping, it must always be sealed (e.g. with refrigerant filler).
 - The following applies to all subsequently installed boreholes/openings with a gap dimension of less than 5 mm:
 - The subsequently installed hole must be

Electrical connections

filled with acetic acid-free sealant.

- In the case of subsequently installed openings, e.g. for cable bushings, through-bolting of fasteners, the gap must also be filled with acetic acid-free sealant.
- Any superfluous sealant must be removed after sealing.
- The following applies to all subsequently installed boreholes/openings with a gap dimension of larger than 5 mm:
 - The cut edges must be treated with a suitable corrosion protection (e.g. zinc dust paint). Afterwards, the gap between the inserted medium and the element must be filled with PU foam.
- Failure to comply with this will invalidate the warranty for the product!

6 Electrical connections

▲ DANGER!		Risk of death due to electric shock!
		 Only have work for the mains connection and installation of protec- tive measures (GFCI circuit breaker) conducted by a specialised electrical contractor.
		► Observe the applicable regula- tions (EN, ISO, VDE, etc.) and con- nection conditions from the relevant energy supply company.
A	DANGER!	Risk of death due to electric shock!
		► Before establishing the mains connection, shut off the mains power

connection, shut off the mains power and secure it to prevent it from being turned back on.

- Only have work for the mains connection and installation of protective measures (GFCI circuit breaker) conducted by a specialised electrical contractor.
- A device which simultaneously disconnects all non-grounded conductors with at least 3 mm contact opening width from the mains (plug connection or 2-pole switch) is to be installed in the supply line to the junction box (integrated in moisture-proof lamp).
- Wire type of at least H05VV-F3G1.5 or NYM-J 3x1.5 should be used, unless additional requirements call for a higher-level type.
- Attach edge protection.
- Remove the cover of the lamp.
- Penetrate cable feed-through of the lamp and insert the enclosed feed-through sleeve.
- Connect to on-site mains connection.
- Make sure that the connection line in the room area is laid firmly.
- Switch on mains voltage and check the function of the electrical system.
- A 2A fuse is installed in the lamp. This must be checked before commissioning.

Only if the unit is not from Viessmann:

- guide connection line through room ceiling.
- Lead the connecting cable through the feed-through sleeve and connect it in the junction box L1, N and PE integrated in the light fitting according to the circuit diagram (depending on the protection class).

Small thermostat in junction box (only for version without lamp) for doors with heating:

- activates via digital thermometer at +4°C
- deactivates the frame and valve heater at approx. 4 °C when the temperature rises.
- Observe the small thermostat's hysteresis range and tolerance.
- () The small thermostat will not activate the heater if the junction box is on the warm side.
- Connect heater without small thermostats.
- Disconnect the heater when disconnecting the system or when operating the room in the positive range.

7 Commissioning

7.1 Commissioning the cold room

Clean and air out the cold room after assembly (siehe Kap. "7 Reinigung" auf Seite 15).

The room is ready for operation.

- Observe the corresponding operating instructions for commissioning the refrigeration unit.
- Dial the cold room down to the desired temperature.
- Make sure that the refrigerated goods are only placed in the cold room once the desired temperature has been reached.
- Then double-check the temperature in the cold room and correct the refrigeration unit regulator as necessary.
- Have the pressure equalisation valve checked by a specialised refrigeration contractor.
- Permissible pressure differential in cold room max.
 100 Pa (1 mbar).
- Check the function of the pressure equalisation valve regularly.
- Make sure that the outlet of the valve is not covered on the inside or outside (by refrigerated goods, for instance).

8 Cleaning

▲ DANGER! Risk of death due to electric shock! ▶ Before any cleaning work, pull

the power plug or shut off the mains power and secure it to prevent it from being turned back on.

Tecto cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms are not watertight.

- () Observe industry-specific hygiene requirements.
- Create hygiene plan depending on use and products stored.
- Regularly

checkTecto cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms for soiling after the initial start-up and clean as required.

Cleaning interval depends on:

- degree of soiling
- Surrounding conditions

Do not use pointed or sharp-edged objects.

Elements with a powder-coated sheet steel or stainless steel surface:

- Do not spray-clean the inside or outside of the walls, ceilings, elements with electrical components (such as door frame) and unit with water.
- Wipe out the inside of the room, dry it completely and air it out well.
- Do not use any scouring agents or cleaning agents that contain solvents.
- Wipe the outside of the room with a damp cloth and dry it off.

Standard floor:

- Wipe with damp cloth only.
- Do not clean standard floors with water jet.
- Make sure there is no water on standard floors.

Tub floor:

- Wipe with damp cloth only.
- Only expose tub floor to standing water or water jet for a short amount of time.

For all floors:

- Regularly wash off door seals with neutral soap solution and dry them off.
- Do not use acetone or cleaning agents that contain solvents to clean the seals.
- Treat stainless steel room floor with standard commercial stainless steel cleaning agents.
- Seal stainless steel surface with stainless steel care product.
- Observe product information on cleaning agents.

9 Decommissioning

For prolonged downtime:

- Pull the power plug or shut off the mains power.
- Ensure adequate ventilation.

10 Technical data

Maintenance

10.1 Permissible loading on floor elements

Load	Wheel	Wheel Load (N**)		Wheel
Weight		1 - 4 cm ²	> 4 cm ²	Load (N/
Class				m²)
1.	Rubber	400	1.600	30.000
2.	PU-/Rubber	750	3.000	40.000
3.	PU-/Rubber	1.000	4.000	50.000
4.*	PU-/Rubber	1.250	5.000	50.000

* Load Weight Class 4) Special version for 5.000N floor: Extension of approval up to 6.000N possible after interal check.möglich nach interner Prüfung

** 10N ≈ 1Kg

11 Maintenance

DANGER!	 Risk of death due to electric shock! ▶ Ensure that maintenance work is carried out exclusively by trained qualified personnel.
	 Disconnect power plug and se- cure to prevent reconnection before carrying out maintenance work.

- Conduct maintenance on TectoCell cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms at least once per year.
- You can reach our technical customer service at: +49 9281 814 908

12 Disposal

Dispose of defective TectoCell cold rooms and deep-freezing rooms in an environmentally friendly manner according to applicable disposal regulations.

13 Standards and laws

Comply with the applicable standards and laws:

- EMC directive 2014/30/EG
- Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC, DIN EN 378 (2008/2012)

14 Warranty

Excerpt from our warranty terms

The warranty period is 5 years. The warranty claim starts on the day of the delivery, which is to verified by delivery note or invoice. Malfunctions that can be attributed to poor workmanship or material defects, will be rectified free of charge within the warranty period.

Further claims, in particular for consequential damages, are excluded.

We shall assume no warranty for damages resulting from improper or inappropriate use, faulty installation or commissioning by the purchaser or third party, natural wear and tear, faulty or negligent handling, chemical or electrochemical and electrical impacts, provided that they cannot be attributed to our fault, failure to observe the installation, operating, and maintenance instructions, improper modifications or repair work by the purchaser or third party, and effects of parts of external origin.

15 Wiring diagram for revolving door SKI



16 Wiring diagram for revolving door SKI



17 Wiring diagram for porthole





Belgien froid.viessmann.be

Dänemark koele.viessmann.dk

Deutschland kuehlen.viessmann.de

Estland kylm.viessmann.ee

Finnland kylma.viessmann.fi

Frankreich froid.viessmann.fr

Irland cooling.viessmann.co.uk

Lettland cooling.viessmann.com

Litauen saldymas.viessmann.lt

Niederlande koelen.viessmann.nl

Norwegen kjol.viessmann.no

Österreich kuehlen.viessmann.at

Polen chlodnicze.viessmann.pl

Russland holod.viessmann.ru

Schweden kyla.viessmann.se

Schweiz kuehlen.viessmann.ch

Spanien refrigeracion.viessmann.es

Vereinigtes Königreich cooling.viessmann.co.uk